
Clackamas Fire District #1 

Board Meeting 
Briefing Packet 

March 21, 2022 

Packet Pg. 1



1

Here for you 

Board of Directors’ Meeting 
Monday, March 21, 2022 

Meeting Location: Remote Video Conferencing 
5:00 pm 

REVISED AGENDA 

REGULAR SESSION 

I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.690
ORS 192.650 – The meeting is being recorded. 

II. CHANGES TO AGENDA

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
ON FEBRUARY 28, 2022. (Packet Pg. 4)

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (The President will call for statements from citizens regarding
District business, not to exceed three minutes per person.)

V. PRESENTATION – CITIZEN LIFE SAVING AWARD – Battalion Chief Paxton

VI. PRESENTATION – RESOLUTION 22-01– Fire Marshal Shawn Olson

VII. BUSINESS – Action required

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required

OB-1 FIRST READING OF RESOLUTION 22-01 – RESOLUTION AMENDING
ORDINANCE 18-01 ADDING FIRE MARSHAL’S OFFICE PLAN 
REVIEW FEES AND ESTABLISHING FLAT RATE FEES FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATIONAL PERMITS – Fire Marshal Olson 

IX. INFORMATIONAL ONLY
A. Division/Department Reports

Packet Pg. 2

(Packet Pg. 16)
OB-2 Legislative Update – Lobbyist Genoa Ingram 

OB-3 Board Committee/Liaison Reports 
Interagency Committee – Director Syring 

OB-4 Board Informational Updates/Comments 



2

Here for you 

R-1a   Office of the Fire Chief – Assistant Chief Steve Deters (Packet Pg. 22)
     Health and Safety report removed.  

R-1b   Office of Strategic Services – Assistant Chief Brian Stewart
R-1b.1   Support Services – Division Chief Mike Carlsen

R-1c   Office of Business Services – Assistant Chief Steve Deters
R-1c.1   Fire Marshal’s Office – Fire Marshal Shawn Olson

R-1d   Office of Financial Services – Chief Financial Officer Mark Whitaker

R-1e   Office of Emergency Services – Division Chiefs Josh Santos and Dan Mulick
R-1e.1   Medical Services – Division Chief Josh Santos
R-1e.2   Operations – Division Chief Dan Mulick

R-1f   Professional Firefighters of Clackamas County Local 1159 – Shop Steward
    Andrew Gordian 

R-1g  Volunteer Association Report – Interim President Jerry Kearney

B. Correspondence (Packet Pg. 27)

C. Informational Items (Packet Pg. 28)

D. Next Meeting
The next Board of Directors’ meeting will be on Monday, April 18, 2022, at 5:00 pm 
by remote video conferencing.

X. REGULAR BOARD MEETING RECESSED

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION CALLED TO ORDER UNDER ORS 192.660 (2)(d) TO
DISCUSS LABOR CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS

XII. REGULAR BOARD MEETING RECONVENED

XIII. ADJOURNMENT

Packet Pg. 3

(Packet Pg. 24)



Clackamas Fire District #1 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING MINUTES 
February 28, 2022 

ATTENDANCE 
Board of Directors: Jay Cross, Chris Hawes, Thomas Joseph, Jim Syring, and Marilyn Wall 

Others present: Clackamas Fire: Nick Browne, Steve Deters, Jason Ellison, Heather Goodrich, 
Tracey Grisham, Izak Hamilton, Oscar Hicks, Melanie Kinne, Dan Mulick, Trish Noble, Brent 
Olson, Shawn Olson, David Palmer, Brandon Paxton, Ariel Roberts, Josh Santos, Jonathan 
Scheirman, Brian Stewart, Scott Vallance, Doug Whiteley, Michael Wong, and Stations 3, 4, 5, 
7, 8, 11, 15, 16, 17, 19; Volunteer Association: Jerry Kearney; Civil Service Commissioner Jeff 
Davies; Sandy Fire: Chief Phil Schneider; Local 1159: Mark Corless, Andrew Gordian, Nate 
Hon, Jordan Dukart, Brant Lapp;  

Other community members and citizens were in attendance. The full video conferencing 
attendance can be provided upon request.  

I. CALL TO ORDER PER ORS 192.610 TO 192.690
ORS 192.650 – The meeting is being recorded.

Director Wall called the meeting to order at 5:05 pm. President Joseph was having technical 
issues. 

II. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
No changes.

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE JOINT WORK SESSION AND TOWN
HALL ON JANUARY 4, 2022, WORK SESSION ON JANUARY 20, 2022, AND
THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES ON JANUARY 24, 2022.

All minutes were approved as written. Director Wall abstained from the Joint Work Session as 
she was not in attendance.   

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT
Scott Bethke resides in Oregon City. He is a 25-year fire fighter who works for a nearby agency.
He was concerned about CFD down staffing stations.

Alan Ferschweiler is a resident of CFD and the OSFFC Legislative Director. He spoke against 
the decreased staffing. He is a firefighter for the state of Oregon and he is proud to be paying 

Packet Pg. 4



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
taxes towards Clackamas Fire. He wanted the Board to seek out all other alternatives and 
suggested a SAFER Grant.    
 
Charles Gallia requested that the Budget Committee be included in some of these decisions. He 
knew of other possibilities besides grants that could be of help.  
 
Karl Koenig spoke as a resident of CFD. He was concerned about the reduced staffing. He gave 
a brief history of his knowledge of the situation. He was very worried that there was only one 
solution brought to the table and requested they seek out every possible solution.  
 
Chris Fig expressed his concerns over decreased staffing. He wanted them to check out other 
solutions.  
 
V. CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSIONER INTERVIEWS 
 
President Joseph joined the Zoom meeting. 
 
The Board interviewed Michael Morrow. 
 
The Board interviewed Bob Johnson later in the meeting as he encountered technical issues. 
 
VI. BUSINESS – Action required 
 
B-1 Request Board Approval of One Commissioner to Serve a Four-Year Term on the 

Civil Service Commission – Assistant Chief Steve Deters 
 
The Board discussed the candidates and thanked them for their interest.  
 
Director Hawes made a motion and Director Syring seconded for the Board to approve 
Michael Morrow as a commissioner to serve a four-year term on the Civil Service 
Commission for Clackamas Fire District #1. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
PRESENTATION – ANNUAL AUDIT – Jarrard, Seibert, Pollard & Co. CPA Russell Ries 
Chief Browne explained that CFO Whitaker had a family emergency and could not attend this 
meeting. He introduced Russell Ries to present the audit. The audit report is located in the Board 
packet.  
 

Packet Pg. 5



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
Russell reported that the CFD was issued a clean opinion. They are not issuing any internal 
control memorandums. He then went over the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Activities, 
the Balance Sheet, and the Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position.    
He then presented on the notes to the audit which included Note D regarding the Oregon Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS).   
 
The only issue they found was that Emergency Services expenditures exceeded appropriations. A 
letter will be sent to the State as is required.  
 
Director Syring asked Russell if he was aware that CFD had to pass a deficit budget for the first-
time last year. The current administration found an error, there is now a substantially larger 
deficit. What will happen during the audit next year when there is this large of a deficit?  
 
Russell explained that they can present a budget where the expenditure levels are more than the 
revenue levels as long as the appropriations are set up correctly. However, they would be eating 
away at their beginning fund balance. He asked where the errors were from last year and 
requested that someone send that documentation to him.  
 
Director Wall asked how there could be no issues with internal controls when there is such 
overspending occurring. 
 
Russell explained that they look at the magnitude and the frequency of the problem. The overall 
total expenditures were still within the supplemental budget appropriation; it was an 
administrative error with the department codes not aggregating correctly. The total general fund 
was not expended.  
 
Director Wall asked what will happen with the State when they send a letter. 
 
Russell said in the past the State will send a letter asking how and why this error happened. 
They’ll also want to know what the District is doing so this doesn’t happen in the future.  
 
Director Cross voiced his concerns over transparency and it looking like money is getting moved 
around.  
 
Russell said that they have been auditing the District for several years and they have never run 
across this error before; it’s not a systematic issue. The last two years were atypical fiscal years. 
It was the perfect storm with the change in the appropriation line items, the Covid-19 pandemic, 

Packet Pg. 6



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
the wildfires, and the supplemental budgets for these events. He knows that CFO Whitaker is 
focused on making sure that error won’t happen again.  
 
B-2 Request Board Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Audit – Fire Chief 

Nick Browne 
 
Director Cross made a motion and Director Syring seconded for the Board to accept the 
fiscal year 2021-2022 annual audit. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Later in the meeting Chief Browne brought up that the Board approved the 2021-2022 audit but 
it needed to be the 2020-2021 audit. He asked for the motion.  
 
Director Cross amended the motion and Director Syring seconded for the Board to accept 
the fiscal year 2020-2021 annual audit. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
B-3 Request Board Approval of Dissolution of the Highland Butte Radio Tower – 

Facilities Services Manager Scott Vallance 
 
Facilities Manager Vallance shared that he had an update from his original report. The assessed 
value is now $54,000 and market value is now $90,000.  
 
He requested that the Board approve the dissolution of the current Highland Butte Radio Tower. 
This tower is being replaced by the new C800 tower which is in a better location and is taller. He 
gave a brief history on the property and showed an aerial photo. The building on the property is 
in disrepair and the tower is old with outdated repeaters. Two of the bordering property owners 
are interested in purchasing it.  
 
Director Wall asked if it was a legal lot. Facilities Manager Vallance confirmed.  
 
Director Wall asked if it had any utilities. Facilities Manager Vallance said the property has 
electricity, no water, and no sewer. He thinks it’s unlikely that it is big enough to support a septic 
system. It also has a propane generator and diesel furnace.  
 
Director Hawes made a motion and Director Cross seconded for the Board to approve the 
dissolution of the Highland Butte Radio Tower.  
 

Packet Pg. 7



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
Director Wall questioned the wording. Are they requesting authorization for the Fire Chief to 
surplus the property? Facilities Manager confirmed.  Director Wall requested that the motion be 
amended to this wording.  
 
Director Hawes agreed and amended the motion for the Board to approve the Fire Chief to 
dispose of the Highland Butte Tower property. Director Cross seconded. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
VII. OTHER BUSINESS – No action required 
 
OB-1 Legislative Update – Lobbyist Genoa Ingram 
No update.  
 
OB-2 Board Committee/Liaison Reports 
Executive Committee – President Joseph/Director Wall 
Director Wall reported that the committee met on February 8, 2022, at the request of the Fire 
Chief. They had general discussions regarding the battalion chief contract negotiations, the 
financial updates, an update on Gladstone, and other efforts to bring the budget into alignment.  
 
Civil Service Liaison – Director Hawes/Commissioner Jeff Davis 
Civil Service Commissioner Jeff Davis reported that there hasn’t been any other meetings since 
the last Board meeting. They meet every three months. President Joseph thanked him for 
attending. 
  
OB-3 Board Informational Updates/Comments 
Financial Update – Fire Chief Nick Browne 
Chief Browne gave a brief background overview of the current financial situation. In April, they 
identified a $1.8 million budget shortfall. In May, they passed a budget with a $1.4 million 
budget shortfall after making some cuts. CFO Whitaker identified an error in the revenue 
forecast in December. They presented this to the Board in a Work Session with the Local 1159. 
He then presented a slide which showed the estimated general budget deficits if no actions were 
taken. All years showed a large budget deficit.  
 
Since the original forecast and since the Work Session, Command and General Staff identified 
$1.3 million in ongoing administrative reductions in force, attrition, and materials & services 
expenditures. This is about a 14% administrative reduction since May.  
 

Packet Pg. 8



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
In February, Chief Browne told DC Mulick he needed approximately $2.9 million in ongoing 
operations reductions. The current plan to achieve this includes reducing five engine companies 
to three-person staffing. Chief Browne then presented a slide that showed the estimated general 
fund budget surplus/deficits in the coming years after the reductions. 2021-2022 still showed a 
budget deficit, but the future years showed surplus where there were previously deficits.  
 
Chief Browne said the situation has been extremely difficult, but he is hopeful that these hard 
decisions will bring lasting financial security to the District. He is well-aware of the many 
benefits and efficiencies of four-person staffing. It’s still his goal to have four-person staffing at 
CFD. Right now, the District needs to go backwards before it can go forwards so it can achieve 
financial solvency. None of these decisions are easy. He is not going to terminate any more 
people. He is not going to shut down any fire stations. Three-person crews are still able to 
respond to calls.  
 
Director Cross stated that he agrees that CFD needs to stop deficit spending, or the money will 
run out. He asked if there was an opportunity to include the Budget Committee and the Local 
1159 in the discussions. Are there other opportunities like SAFER grants? What is the build-back 
plan? People are concerned that this is a permanent solution.  
 
Chief Browne said he plans on having a Work Session with the Board and the Local 1159 in the 
coming months. He has been having discussions with Local 1159 President Corless and there is 
room for collaboration.  
 
President Joseph brought up that the Local 1159 is now included in the Board meetings and he 
agreed that it’s important to have them in discussions.  
 
Chief Browne said that the Local 1159 did bring a SAFER grant forward as an option. He 
analyzed it and does not want to be in this same situation three years from now when the grant 
runs out. He wants to fix the issues now. There are multiple avenues and funding sources 
available. As far as the build-back plan, it really depends on the direction they go. He requested 
that the Board be patient and he will bring a plan forward to them.  
 
Director Syring understood that CFD is in a difficult situation. There have been poor decisions 
made by previous administrations and a lot of revenue was lost from the failed Estacada merger 
where CFD still kept those employees. Then there was the million-dollar mistake. The Board 
agreed to a union contract that includes D shift which has its own expenses and wage increases. 
These decisions were based on incorrect numbers. Eighty percent of the budget is personnel. He 
is not happy with going down to three-person companies. However, closing stations and laying 

Packet Pg. 9



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
off more personnel is not an option for him. He gave a brief history of different stations going 
back and forth between three-person and four-person staffing. When the District is able, it has 
always been a priority to increase stations to four-person staffing. A levy could be on the table in 
the future. He feels making these changes now and creating financial solvency puts the District 
in a better position to go to the public so they can go back to four-person staffing via a levy.  
 
Director Hawes wanted the public to know that three-person staffing is not substandard. He has 
experienced this personally and shared when a three-person crews helped him. He said three 
years ago, he attended the CFD Board meeting and pointed out that revenues were going up 11% 
but labor costs went up 14% and that wasn’t going to last forever.  No changes were made and 
now they are in their current situation. With the budget being 75% labor, there are a limited 
number of options to balance the budget. He was impressed with the Chief and staff’s plan. 
There is no clean way to do this. There was a way to avoid it, but it would have had to be done 
years ago. His priorities continue to be the community and this organization. He understands that 
there is no build-back plan yet as they are still trying to “put out the fire”; they can’t rebuild the 
house while it’s still on fire. He reminded the group that those estimates in the graphs were mid-
range and that there were estimates that were worse than that. He felt the changes proposed were 
short-term painful but long-term healthy and he thanked the Chief and staff for all their work.  
 
Director Wall agreed that they need to have some short-term pain for long-term gain. She 
thought they all had the same goals but different paths of how to get there. The most valuable 
resource CFD has is the workforce. Chief Browne is trying to preserve as many people as he can. 
If CFD needs to go from four-person to three-person to achieve financial responsibility, then 
that’s what they need to do. They need to continue to perform the mission with fiscal 
responsibility. This is a long time coming. Multiple people contributed to the problem including 
the Board (excluding Director Hawes). The Board did not insist on solutions when they started to 
see the red ink in the forecasts. It’s now fallen on Chief Browne. Everyone needs to give his plan 
a chance to work. She remains skeptical of CFD’s PERS costs. She agreed that the budget 
committee and other parties should be included in the discussions.  
 
President Joseph agrees with the comments of his fellow Board members. He believed it was 
important not to point fingers. Chief Browne and his staff have come forward with the problem 
and possible solutions. He felt that three-person staffing was better than closing a station. He 
posed the question; can you hold your breath for seven minutes? Because that is how much 
longer an engine could take to get to you in an emergency if a station was closed. He and the 
Board are supportive of this approach and know this is short term.  
 

Packet Pg. 10



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
Director Cross said that as a Board, they cannot bankrupt the District. They can’t keep 
continuing to do what they are doing or in three years, that’s what will happen. To solve this 
problem, they can go with Chief Browne’s plan, or they can close a station and lay off 12 people.  
In the past when he was on the board with Boring Fire District, they had a choice to either lay off 
everyone and go to a completely volunteer staff or they could legally integrate with CFD. This 
came about because they did not get in front of their financial issues. If CFD gets ahead of these 
issues, they can avoid drastic measures. He felt that the Budget Committee and the Local 1159 
would be beneficial to this conversation now, as well as in the build-back plan discussions.  
 
Director Syring agreed with Director Cross. He asked if the trucks and heavy rescue are staying 
at four-person staffing. Chief Browne confirmed. Squad 319, Stations 1, 3, 10, 14 are going to a 
three-person station. Station 3 is keeping the medic. 
 
Director Syring felt the build-back plan is important when the timing is appropriate. What 
stations would go back to four-person first? He felt there could be support for a potential levy.  
 
President Joseph reiterated that they will continue to be collaborative with the Budget Committee 
and the Local 1159.  
 
VIII. INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
A. Division/Department Reports 
R-1a Office of the Fire Chief – Fire Chief Nick Browne 
 
R-1a.1 Governmental Affairs – Battalion Chief Brandon Paxton 
 
R-1b Office of Strategic Services – Assistant Chief Brian Stewart 
AC Stewart shared that they had had the kickoff mediation session with the battalion chief group. 
There was good conversation and discussion. There is a second session scheduled, but the 
conversations are going well.  
 
He shared that Gladstone held a special meeting on February 22nd, and it was an opportunity for 
their fire chief and city administrator to share with the city council more about the demands for 
emergency services in their community. Public testimony was also received. The conversation 
will continue at their regular meeting on March 8th. We are providing them with some follow-up 
information that they have requested.  
 
AC Stewart also shared a Facilities update regarding Urban Renewal dollars. At Station 1, there 
is a house next door that the District purchased a few years ago. It is being remodeled using 

Packet Pg. 11



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
Urban Renewal funds, and it will be used for additional office space when it is completed in 
about a month and a half. The 130th campus also has Urban Renewal funds allocated to it, and 
they are looking at how they can modify and secure the property to centralize internal services 
for the crews.  
 
R-1b.1 Technology Division – Chief Technology Officer Oscar Hicks 
 
CTO Hicks shared that Technology Services is staying in line with the District and providing 
financial stability. They’re conducting an application audit to address issues of compliance, 
licensing, overlap of usage, and support and maintenance. They’re looking for areas where 
consolidation is possible.  
 
He said that they are also working with neighboring agencies and having conversations about 
what applications and processes they’re using/following and seeking possible opportunities for 
collaboration.  
 
CTO Hicks also shared a cybersecurity update. He is staying up to date with cybersecurity 
issues/news in order to ensure that the District is well-prepared. He would not recommend 
moving to Windows 11 yet.   
 
R-1c Office of Business Services – Assistant Chief Steve Deters 
R-1c.1 Human Capital Division – Assistant Chief Steve Deters 
 
AC Deters shared that Human Capital completed the lateral entry firefighter process, the 
onboarding of the two new Finance employees, and the interviews for the Sandy and Clackamas 
feasibility study. The feasibility study is still in process awaiting the technical review.  
 
In the last Civil Service meeting he was appointed to the Chief Examiner position.  
 
R-1d Office of Financial Services – Fire Chief Nick Browne 
 
Finances have already been discussed at length during the meeting, so Fire Chief Browne shared 
that there wasn’t more to share unless the Board had any questions.  
 
R-1e Office of Emergency Services – Division Chiefs Josh Santos and Dan Mulick 
R-1e.1 Medical Services – Division Chief Josh Santos 
 

Packet Pg. 12



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
DC Santos shared the Clackamas Fire Community Medicine program was awarded the 
Clackamas County Blueprint Grant of $75,000. This money will go towards a portion of the 
community paramedic employee cost. It will help continue efforts in Project Hope, which is the 
opioid harm reduction program, and will also assist in mental health crisis and overall addressing 
of low acuity and non-emergent calls in the 911 system. The goal is to keep heavy assets off 
those calls. There are also several other grants that are in the balance that they should hear back 
from in the coming months.  
 
R-1e.2 Operations – Division Chief Dan Mulick 
 
DC Mulick shared that Operations is still focusing on communications and strategy and tactics. 
They went from an analog to a digital system, and this has brought along some challenges with 
the radio communications which they are continuing to work through.  
 
He gave kudos to BC Willard and BC Ellison. They’ve finished up their two-week session on 
strategy and tactics training with the line. It was fantastic training and very well-received by the 
line.  
 
The District is currently in recruitment right now for Crew 30. Once the crew is established, BC 
B. Olson will present a detailed report to the Board to share what that program will be doing this 
year.  
 
On February 17th, the volunteer academy graduated, and it was a well-attended event.  
 
There was a line of duty death of a firefighter in St. Paul, Oregon, and the District did the best 
they could to support their members and family. He gave a huge thanks to the volunteers who 
participated in the funeral procession. CFD provided coverage for Aurora Fire during the funeral.  
 
DC Mulick shared some significant events that have happened over the last month. BC Cordie 
had a fire in Station 4’s planning zone. It was a well-involved fire that the crews quickly 
extinguished. BC Willard had a fire off Oatfield Road in Station 3’s planning zone. Once again, 
it was quickly extinguished. It was exceptional in the amount of time that it took them to get the 
fire under control and do the primary search. BC Scheirman had a commercial fire off Molalla 
Avenue (pictured in the board packet).  
 
Director Hawes shared that he drove past a fatal motorcycle accident on Eagle Creek Road and 
Highway 211. He was impressed by the crew that was on scene. They did their best to block the 
victim from the view of those driving by and were very professional while interacting with the 

Packet Pg. 13



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
people on scene. He was humbled and honored to be a part of an organization that has people 
like that. They were professional, compassionate, and impressive. DC Mulick thanked him for 
sharing and agreed with his sentiments.  
 
R-1f Professional Firefighters of Clackamas County Local 1159 – Shop Steward Andrew 

Gordian 
 
Shop Steward Gordian shared that HB 4113 passed, which added bladder and female 
reproductive cancers to the other twelve presumptive cancers covered under workers’ 
compensation. It is a huge deal, and he was thankful to Firefighter Jill Fullerton for sharing her 
testimony.  
 
Shop Steward Gordian then shared a statement from Local 1159 regarding the staffing reduction.  
 
Union President Mark Corless then spoke. He reiterated that the statement shared by Shop 
Steward Gordian was an important reflection of where the Local stands. He shared that the Local 
is going to continue conversations with the District.  
 
R-1g Volunteer Association Report – Interim President Jerry Kearney 
 
Interim President Kearney shared station coverage for January. He shared that ten volunteers 
attended the funeral for Austin Smith, the St. Paul firefighter who died in the line of duty. In 
addition to attending the funeral, the Volunteer Association donated $1000 to his widow.   
 
He shared that the new recruits had graduated and assigned to their stations and in-house trainers.  
 
IX. ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Christina Stephenson, a civil rights and employment attorney, shared her concerns regarding the 
staffing changes. She wants the District to continue looking for solutions.  
 
Chris Fig shared his appreciation for the Fire District and the Board. He asked about whether a 
proposal could be put together that would break down the cost for each individual homeowner to 
make up the budget deficit. He suggested a SAFER grant followed up by a levy in order to 
resolve budget issues. He shared concerns about moving from four-person staffing to three-
person staffing. 
 

Packet Pg. 14



 
Clackamas Fire District #1 
 
 
  
Director Cross clarified that he did not believe anybody was saying that three-person staffing 
was the same as four-person staffing, but that it is a better option than having nobody 
responding.  
 
Karl Koenig shared that he hoped CFD doesn’t repeat history and set the District back. The 
District needs to re-evaluate expectations and ask management/leadership to find solutions. He 
expressed that the stations moving from four-person to three-person staffing need to be trained. 
He felt that transparency was key moving forward and wants SAFER grants to be considered.  
 
President Joseph shared that collaboration is the goal.  
 
X. CONTINUANCE OF INFORMATIONAL ONLY 
A. Correspondence 
Noted.  
 
B. Informational Items 
Noted.  
 
C. Next Meeting 
The next Board of Directors’ meeting will be on Monday, March 21, 2022, at 5:00 pm by remote 
video conferencing. 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
The regular Board of Directors’ meeting adjourned at 7:59 pm. 
 
 
Minutes recorded by Executive Assistant Ariel Roberts and prepared by Administrative Technician 
Jessamyn Ode.  

 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
President Thomas Joseph    Secretary James Syring 

Packet Pg. 15



Clackamas Fire District #1 

Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

   Fire Chief Nick Browne 

From: Fire Marshal Shawn Olson 

Date: March 7, 2022  

Re: Amendments and Additions to Ordinance 18-01 Fee Structure 

Action Requested 

Request Board of Directors adopt Resolution 22-01-Resolution amending Ordinance 18-01 
adding Fire Marshal’s Office Plan Review Fees and Establishing Flat Rate Fees for 
Construction and Operational Permits. 

Background 

In 2019, the Fire District adopted amendments to 18-01 adding additional fees for service. 
Currently, the Fire Marshal’s Office (FMO) has not requested fees for service to conduct plan 
review or develop operational and construction permits. Through a resolution, amendments 
to 18-01 can be administered in accordance with section 5. 

Flat rate fees for service will include engineering related duties and construction/operational 
permits. Specifically, stricter enforcement practices, plan review for fire department access 
and water supply and related duties, cannabis extraction and processing, exterior 
flammable/combustible tanks, haunted houses, temporary tents and canopies, events and 
festivals, explosives and blasting, underground fire line, fireworks, and fire safety during new 
construction inspections.  

 County and city officials rely upon FMO staff to conduct plan review for fire apparatus 
 access and water supply.  

The FMO assists county and city jurisdictions with acceptance testing, building finals and 
certificate of occupancy inspections. This fee structure will allow for reimbursement of these 
services. Due to years of collaboration and partnership, county and city jurisdictions request 
our assistance to enforce the Oregon Fire Code, once a new building is finalized and a 

Packet Pg. 16

OB-1



certificate of occupancy is issued. After that, the building is added into the FMO Occupancy 
Inspection Program. 
 
The FMO has not developed a permit process before. Establishing operational permits will 
allow for reimbursement for services relating to delegated work from The Office of the State 
Fire Marshal (OSFM). Firework applications are one of those delegated tasks. The FMO 
receives approximately 44 firework applications a year. OSFM requests local jurisdictions to 
conduct site visits to ensure firework safety protocols are met.  
 
In addition, the FMO will request permits for Haunted Houses, Temporary Tents and 
Canopies, Explosives and Blasting, Events and Festivals and Fire Safety During Construction 
Inspections. The permit process will allow the FMO the ability to ensure the Oregon Fire Code 
requirements are enforced.  These categories are above and beyond regularly conducted fire 
and life safety inspections.  
 
Clackamas Fire District #1 is a delegate of OSFM. We are allowed, by law, to implement a 
fee for service and establish our own permit processes.  

 
  Policy Implications 
Adopting Resolution 22-01 will allow the Fire Marshal’s Office the ability to administer flat rate 
fees for service and amend Section G of Ordinance 18-01.  
 
Recommendation 
The FMO would like to recommend the Board of Directors adopts Resolution 22-01-
Resolution amending Ordinance 18-01 Adopting Cost-Based Fees and Rates for Fire 
Marshal’s Office Fire Plan Review and Establishing Flat Rate Fees for Construction and 
Operational Permits. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Packet Pg. 17



CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT #1  
RESOLUTION # 22-01  

A Resolution Amending Ordinance # 18-01 Section G Adopting Cost-Based Fees and 
Rates for Fire Marshal’s Office Plan Review Fees and Establishing Flat Rate Fees for 

Construction and Operational Permits  
  

WHEREAS, the Clackamas Fire District #1 Ordinance 18-01 adopts cost-based fees and 
rates for District-provided services and allows amendment of such fees and rates by Resolution; 
and  
  WHEREAS, ORS 478.410(4) authorizes the District to create and establish fees for any 
services provided by the District through the adoption of an ordinance; and  
  

WHEREAS, ORS 478.310 authorizes the District to recover its reasonable actual 
expenses for responses in unprotected areas outside of the Fire District, including the contract 
or reasonable value of use, the repairs and depreciation of equipment, and other expenses 
reasonably incurred in furnishing firefighting or public safety services; and  
  

WHEREAS, the amendments to Ordinance 18-01 Section G in this Resolution have 
been evaluated by the Board of Directors and they have approved such costs and fees as 
providing reimbursement for the actual costs of services, and permits provided by the District; 
and  
  WHEREAS, the Board of Directors and the Fire Chief shall at all times comply with the 
requirements that such rates and fees shall not exceed the actual cost of providing such 
services and permits; and  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, the Clackamas Fire District Board of Directors hereby resolves as 
follows:   
  

1. Amendment. The Clackamas Fire District Rates and Fee Schedule is hereby amended as 
shown on the attached Exhibit 1, which by this reference is incorporated into this Resolution.  
  

2.   Chief’s Discretionary Authority Regarding Rates and Fees. The Clackamas Fire District Board 
of Directors authorizes the Fire Chief to exercise discretionary authority to decrease or waive 
the Rates and Fees on the Rates and Fee Schedule, on a case-by-case basis at his or her sole 
discretion. The Fire Chief is also authorized to impose the rates and fees in the Oregon State 
Fire Marshal’s Cost Schedule on a non-hourly basis, as long as the District does not charge 
more than the actual cost of providing its services.  
  

3    The Clackamas Fire District Board of Directors authorizes the Fire Chief, at his or her sole 
discretion, to adopt administrative rules as needed to further define how the Rate and Fees on 
the attached Rates and Fee Schedule and in the Oregon State Fire Marshal’s Cost Schedule 
shall be charged, including but not limited to whether such rates and fees may be charged on a 
non-hourly basis, by using a flat fee, or by using staggered or graduated rates and fees, as long 
as the District does not charge more than the actual cost of providing such services.     
  
Adopted this ______day of __________ 2022  
  
  
  
_______________________     _______________________  
President, Board of Directors     Secretary, Board of Directors  

Packet Pg. 18



 
The language below is to be added to Appendix A of Ordinance 18-01: 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
 

Fire and Life Safety Inspections and Reinspection's 
  
Effective July 1st, 2022, a flat rate fee shall be imposed on the second reinspection (third site visit). 
The first initial inspection and first reinspection are at no cost.   
  
A flat rate fee will be assessed beginning with the third site visit. If additional site visits are needed 
to gain fire code compliance, the flat rate fees will progress higher each visit. If fire code 
compliance is not achieved after the fourth reinspection, the Fire Marshal or delegate will notify 
The Office of the State Fire Marshal for assistance.   
  
• 2nd reinspection: $70.00  
• 3rd reinspection: $140.00  
• 4th reinspection: $560.00  
  
If a business denies entry to a Fire Inspector or delegate for inspection purposes, an 
administrative warrant will be needed to proceed. All staff time, travel time, and other expenses 
associated with obtaining an administrative warrant will be billed per hour of time spent directly to 
the property owner or legal representative.   
  
Construction Permits  
  
Effective July 1st, 2022, a flat rate fee shall be imposed for newly proposed commercial properties. 
The fee will cover fire apparatus access and water supply plan review, building finals, certificate 
of occupancy inspections, pre-application meetings, and acceptance testing. Fee is to be paid at 
time of site plan submittal.   
  
Commercial Rate: >10,000 sq.ft.=$540.00   
        <10,000 sq.ft.=$270.00  
  
Effective July 1st, 2022, a flat rate fee shall be imposed for newly proposed residential properties. 
The fee will cover fire apparatus access and water supply plan review, pre-application meetings, 
and potential site visits. Fee is to be paid at time of site plan submittal.   
  
Residential Rate: $160.00  
   
Additional Construction Permit Fees:   
  
1. Extraction and Processing (OLCC approvals): $320.00  
2. Underground Fire Line Plan Review/Inspections (scope outside OSSC regulations):$240.00 
  
  
  
Operational Permits  

Packet Pg. 19



  
Effective July 1st, 2022, a flat rate fee shall be imposed for the following permits. Fees are due at 
the time of the application. The following flat rates apply:   
  
1. Haunted Houses: $180.00  
2. >400 sq.ft.Temporary Tents and Canopies: $180.00  
3. Explosives and Blasting: $180.00  
4. Events and Festivals: $180.00  
5. Fireworks, Retail Sales: $35.00   

a. Any revisions will be an additional $25.00  
6. Fireworks, Public Display: $160.00   

a. Any revisions will be an additional $25.00  
7. Fire Safety During Construction Inspections: $160.00  
 

Packet Pg. 20



EXHIBIT 1  
  
  
Ordinance 18-01 is amended as follows:  
  
18-01-Section G: “Fire Marshal’s Office Plan Review, Construction and Operational 
Permits” 

 
A flat rate fee may be applied for fire and life safety inspections, reinspection's, plan 
review, pre-application meetings, fire protection acceptance testing, building finals, 
certificate of occupancy inspections, construction and operational permits identified in 
Appendix A. Additional fees may be applied for any District-incurred costs to obtain 
necessary inspection warrants, including attorney fees. Requests from contractors or 
business owners for new construction or maintenance inspections outside normal 
working hours may result in higher cost recovery fees due to the District’s increased 
personnel costs for such requests.  
  
The Fire Chief may impose additional, amend, or revise the FMO flat rates fees at any 
time to ensure reasonable compensation is achieved.   
  
The following language is hereby stricken from Ordinance 18-01 Section G:   
  
g. Fire Code Inspection and Enforcement Fees  
A cost-based fee for fire code inspections and code enforcement may be imposed for 
any fire and life safety occupancy inspections; for re-inpsections for previously 
identified fire code violations; or for the documented actual costs of enforcing the fire 
code to correct previously identified violations as provided in this section. Fees 
assessed may include any District-incurred costs to obtain necessary inspection 
warrants, including attorney costs. Such fess will be based upon the actual cost of 
conducting such inspections, enforcing the code, or performing any related work and 
shall be calculated, if applicable, using the rates provided in Appendix A. Requests 
from contractors or business owners for new construction or maintenance inspections 
outside normal working hours may result in higher cost recovery fees due to the 
District’s increased personnel costs for such requests.   

 

Packet Pg. 21



FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
February 2022 

 

 

 

Highlights (continued) 

• Crew 30 and Fuels 31 were assembled with 8 members returning from last year.

Training started on March 14th.

• Operations rolled out staffing changes to 5 companies, reducing crew strength from 4 to

3. This change took effect on March 1st.

• Accepted Blueprint grant award of $75,000 to help fund an additional Community

Paramedic

• The Training Department provided Phase 1 of Strategy and Tactics February 1-10th.

They also provided Firefighter Safety and Survival evolutions at an acquired structure on

Mt. Scott for the last two weeks in February.

• County-wide work continued with the Ambulance Service Plan. Revisions to be

completed by July.

Highlights 

• Apprenticeship program preparations

are underway. Lt. Sakaguchi was

selected to be the coordinator for the

program.

• Wrapped up 2021 RSG Wildfire Fuel

Reduction Grant

o Total CESF funds used for

reimbursement of our citizens for

fuel reduction services or

equipment: $31,839.93

o Total funds spent by CFD #1 citizens

to reduce wildlife fuels:

$103,538.04

o Conducted 84 site visits

• Secured mobility environment for CFD

#1 and county fire agencies through

transitioning NetMotion to a cloud

environment.

Packet Pg. 22

R-1a



FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
February 2022 

Organizational Data 

Staffing 

Response Risk Reduction Staff 
Suppression 
Volunteers 

Support 
Volunteers 

Allocated 227 12 54 

Filled 217 12 54 39 21 

Academy 0 0 0 0 

Volunteers 

Training 
Community 
Involvement 

Duty 
Shifts 

Station 
12 

Station 
13 

Station 
21 

Support 

Number of 
Drills 

6 
Number of 

Events 
1 Nights 18/28 8/28 20/28 5/28 

0

10000

20000

EMS Fire Pub Assist Good Intent/False Other

Incidents by Type
12-months ending February of each year

Does not include mutual aid given

2020 2021 2022

-100

0

100

200

300

400

500

Aurora Canby Colton Estacada Gladstone Gresham Hoodland Lake
Oswego

Molalla Portland Sandy TVFR

Net Mutual Aid
Net incident response for 12-months ending February of each year

Includes canceled en route incidents

2020 2021 2022

Average Company Time Committed 

Time: 16 hours and 47 minutes Percent of Month: 25% 

Includes Preparation and Response: Incidents, Apparatus/Equipment Checks, Physical Fitness, Training 

Packet Pg. 23



FINANCIAL REPORT
Period Ending February 28, 2022

$55.9m
$61.2m $60.4m

$0

$10m

$20m

$30m

$40m

$50m

$60m

$70m

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22

General Fund Total Revenue
Through February

$51.4m $53.5m $55.9m

$0

$10m

$20m

$30m

$40m

$50m

$60m

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22

General Fund Property Tax Revenues
Through February

$28.8m

$39.0m $39.3m

$0

 $10m

 $20m

 $30m

 $40m

 $50m

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22

General Fund Salary & Benefits
Through February

67.2% of FY budget spent

$3.3m

$4.9m
$5.3m

$0

$1.0m

$2.0m

$3.0m

$4.0m

$5.0m

$6.0m

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22

General Fund Overtime
Through February

77.8% of FY budget spent

Packet Pg. 24

R-1d



FINANCIAL REPORT
Period Ending February 28, 2022

$1.6m

$3.2m

$2.6m

$0
$0.5m
$1.0m
$1.5m
$2.0m
$2.5m
$3.0m
$3.5m

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22

General Fund Health Claim Expenses
Through February

56.5% of FY budget spent

$0

 $10m

 $20m

 $30m

 $40m

 $50m

 $60m

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Month-End Cash Balance, All Funds 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

$4.6m $4.7m $4.6m

$0

$1.0m

$2.0m

$3.0m

$4.0m

$5.0m

FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22

General Fund Materials and Services
Through February

67.5% of FY budget spent

Packet Pg. 25



Original 
Budget

Revised 
Budget Actual YTD

% of Revised 
Budget

Beginning Fund Balance $18,505,460 $18,505,460 $18,069,786 97.6%

Revenues
Current Year Property Taxes $59,647,923 $59,647,923 $55,426,452 92.9%
Prior Year Property Taxes 720,000 720,000 443,123 61.5%
Interest 200,000 200,000 61,855 30.9%
Charges for Services 2,781,205 4,332,205 3,086,019 71.2%
Grant Revenue 200,000 200,000 119,163 59.6%
Other Revenue 1,235,000 1,460,000 1,277,644 87.5%
Transfers In 44,000 49,375 - 0.0%

Total Revenues  $64,828,128 $66,609,503 $60,414,256 90.7%

Total Available Resources $83,333,588 $85,114,963 $78,484,042 92.2%

Expenditures
Fire Chief's Office $1,518,270 $1,154,088 $747,481 64.8%
Emergency Services $45,895,569 $47,842,386 $32,818,224 68.6%
Business Services $16,094,895 $16,293,635 $10,349,269 63.5%
Debt Service $2,075,504 $2,075,504 $315,252 15.2%
Transfers Out $628,104 $628,104 $0 -
Contingency $2,587,718 $2,587,718 $0 -

Total Expenditures  $68,800,060 $70,581,435 $44,230,226 62.7%

10 - GENERAL FUND

Clackamas Fire District #1

February 2022

Budget to Actual Report for Period Ending          
February 28, 2022

Packet Pg. 26



CORRESPONDENCE 
C-1 Social Media Comments

Social Media Comments 

Appreciation for crews in raising funds for Children’s Cancer Association, Feb. 4 

Thank you to Stairclimb Team in raising funds for Leukemia and Lymphoma Society, March 13: 

Packet Pg. 27



INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

I – 1  KATU News, February 27, 2022: “Firefighters hold fundraiser ahead of Leukemia 
& Lymphoma Society Firefighter Stairclimb” 
https://katu.com/news/local/firefighters-hold-fundraiser-ahead-of-leukemia-
lymphoma-society-firefighter-stairclimb 

I – 2 KATU News, March 6, 2022: “Fire at homeless camp in Milwaukie impacts 
nearby power lines” https://katu.com/news/local/fire-at-homeless-camp-in-
milwaukie-impacts-nearby-power-lines 

Packet Pg. 28

https://katu.com/news/local/firefighters-hold-fundraiser-ahead-of-leukemia-lymphoma-society-firefighter-stairclimb
https://katu.com/news/local/firefighters-hold-fundraiser-ahead-of-leukemia-lymphoma-society-firefighter-stairclimb
https://katu.com/news/local/fire-at-homeless-camp-in-milwaukie-impacts-nearby-power-lines
https://katu.com/news/local/fire-at-homeless-camp-in-milwaukie-impacts-nearby-power-lines

	March 21, 2022 Board Packet 
	Agenda
	Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	OB-1 Resolution 22-01
	R-1a Fire Chief's Report 
	R-1d Finance Report
	Correspondence
	Informational Items



